FILED

SID J. WHITE

JAN 7 1992 ✓

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By [Signature]  
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

GEORGE JAMES TREPAL,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)  
)

CASE NO. 77,667

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT  
OF THE TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT  
IN AND FOR POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL  
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700  
Westwood Center  
Tampa, Florida 33607-2366  
(813) 873-4739  
Attorney for Appellee

RONALD N. TOWARD, ESQUIRE  
Post Office Box 226  
Bartow, Florida 33830  
(813) 533-0507  
Florida Bar Number 258105  
Attorney for Appellant

TOPICAL

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

References to the record on appeal shall be designated by (R-XX), with the XX representing the page of the record cited as numbered by the Clerk of Court. References to exhibits are designated by (Ex. #), with the # representing the exhibit as numbered at the trial of this cause, by the Clerk of Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On April 5, 1990, a fifteen count indictment was filed in the Circuit Court of the Tenth Judicial Circuit in and for Polk County, Florida, wherein Appellant, GEORGE JAMES TREPAL, was charged with the following offenses:

- Count I: The first degree, premeditated death of Peggy Carr, effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count II: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Arlie Duane Dubberly effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count III: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Parealyn Travis Carr effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count IV: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Parealyn (Pye) Carr effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count V: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Kasey Bell effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count VI: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Gelena Bell effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count VII: The attempted first degree, premeditated death of Tammy Carr effected through the use of poison, to wit: thallium;
- Count VIII: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Peggy Carr;
- Count IX: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Arlie Duane Dubberly;
- Count X: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Parealyn Travis Carr;

- Count XI: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Porealyn (Pye) Carr;
- Count XII: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Kasey Bell;
- Count XIII: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Gelena Bell;
- Count XIV: The poisoning of food or drink with thallium with the intent to kill or injure another person, to wit: Tammy Carr;
- Count XV: The contamination of a consumer product, to wit: soft drinks, with thallium (R4415-4423).

On May 1, 1990, Appellant filed a Motion to Dismiss wherein he contended that the indictment failed to set forth sufficient facts upon which to predicate the enumerated charges (R-4565). Appellant's motion was denied (R-4566). However, it was discovered that the first count of the indictment incorrectly stated the timeframe for the offense of first degree murder as to Peggy Carr. Accordingly, the matter was resubmitted to the grand jury and, on May 10, 1990, an amended indictment was returned against Appellant (R4584-4592).

On August 2, 1990, Appellant filed a motion to suppress certain evidence, to wit: a small brown bottle and the contents thereof, referred to throughout the remainder of the litigation as "Q-206" (R4637-4639). An amended motion to suppress was filed on August 17, 1990. The motion addressed the same item of evidence, to wit: Q-206, and alleged that the evidence should be suppressed because it was seized

without a warrant from a closed drawer in an old chest of drawers located in the detached garage of Appellant's home (R4666-4670).

Appellant's amended motion to suppress came on to be heard on the 27th day of August, 1990, before the Honorable Dennis P. Maloney (R-4765). Special Agent Susan Goreck was called on behalf of Appellant while Detective Ernest Mincey was called by the State (R-4777; R-4831). Following completion of the testimony, the trial court took the motion under advisement (R-4878). On September 7, 1990, a written order was filed wherein the trial court denied Appellant's motion to suppress (R5087-5090).

Trial by jury commenced on January 7, 1991, the Honorable Dennis P. Maloney presiding (R-3). At the conclusion of the State's case, Appellant moved for the entry of a Judgment of Acquittal (R-4076). The motion addressed two alternate interpretations of the evidence against Appellant. First, Appellant argued that the evidence was purely circumstantial and did not exclude every reasonable hypothesis of innocence (R-4076). Specifically, Appellant maintained that it would be necessary to pyramid inferences in order for the jury to render a conviction (R4078-4080). Second, Appellant argued that the evidence failed to establish the element of premeditation (R-4094). That is, even if the evidence

was legally sufficient to establish that Appellant was the individual who placed the thallium in the soft drink bottles, the evidence was legally insufficient to establish that he had done so with the intent of causing death (R4094-4098). The evidence would thereby support a conviction for second degree murder or manslaughter, but would not support a conviction for first degree murder.

Appellant's motion was considered and denied (R-4121). Appellant then rested without presenting any further evidence (R-4122). His renewed Motion for Judgment of Acquittal was also denied (R-4122). On February 5, 1991, the jury returned verdicts of guilty as to all counts of the amended indictment (R5475-5490). Penalty phase was conducted on February 7, 1991 (R-4367). By a vote of nine to three, the jury recommended a sentence of death (R-4409). On March 6, 1991, the trial judge imposed the following sentences:

Count 1: Death

Counts 2 through 15: Thirty years in prison as to each count, the sentences being structured so as to result in a ninety year, concurrent sentence (R5554-5555).

Written findings in support of the imposition of the death penalty were filed by the trial judge on March 6, 1991 (R5549-5556). The trial court determined that three statutory aggravating circumstances were proven beyond any reasonable doubt, to wit:

1. The defendant was previously convicted of another capital felony or a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person.



2. The defendant knowingly created a great risk of death to many persons.

3. The capital felony was a homicide and was committed in a cold, calculated, and premeditated manner without any pretense of moral or legal justification (R5549-5550).

The court found one statutory and four nonstatutory mitigating factors, to wit:

1. The defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.

2. The defendant's personal life has been characterized by good and loving relationships. He has always been obedient to his parents and has been part of a happy marriage for over ten years.

3. The defendant is an intelligent man who has shared his expertise with others through various articles.

4. The defendant's adjustment to the prison system in 1975 was exceptional and he freely participated in programs designed to assist other inmates.

5. The defendant's nature is shy, quiet, polite, and amiable. He is generous to others and behaved respectfully. Numerous friends supported him throughout the proceedings and are convinced that an injustice has been done in this case (R5551-5553).

Notice of Appeal was filed on March 22, 1991 (R5559-5560).

The Office of the Public Defender was appointed to represent Appellant for appeal purposes on March 4, 1991 (R-5533). Undersigned counsel was subsequently appointed by Court Order dated July 23, 1991 (R-5571).

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Parealyn "Pye" Carr and Margaret Smith were married in 1967 (R-3585). Until their divorce in 1986, they lived at 2690 Alturas Road, Alturas, Polk County, Florida (R-3586). Pye Carr met Peggy Dubberly in 1987 and married her in March of 1988 (R-1978). Following their marriage, they moved into Pye Carr's home in Alturas, Florida (R-1680). Pye's son, Travis, and Peggy's son, Duane Dubberly, also lived in the house (R-1586).

In the early 1980's, Appellant, GEORGE TREPAL, and his wife, Dr. Diana Carr, purchased the property adjoining Pye Carr's property from Leland Young (R-3682). Dr. Carr was not related to the Pye Carr family. The Trepal home was at least 70 years old, and a garage located on the property was at least 40 years old (R-3685). The homes were located in orange groves and were essentially isolated (Ex. #6).

In March of 1988, Pye Carr converted a garage located on his property into an apartment (R-1721; R-3622). The apartment was located almost directly between the Trepal and Carr residences, and the Carr homestead was surrounded by a chain link fence (Ex. #10; R-3862). The garage apartment was occupied continuously by Pye Carr's two daughters, Gelena Shiver and Tammy Reed, and by his granddaughter, Kasey Bell (R-1613). In addition, Gelena's ex-husband, Ron Chester, also resided in the apartment between June and September of 1988 (R-3648). The occupants of the apartment used the "main" house (R-3657).

The State sought to introduce evidence throughout the trial that the relationship between the Trepal family and the Carr family was volatile. In fact, most of the incidents were innocuous. They involved situations where Appellant and his wife would become upset because their cats were being chased by the Carr dogs or when the Carr children would ride their three-wheelers on the Trepal property (R-3670). There was no evidence of any confrontations over these events. Rather, only two confrontations between the families were documented, but the State produced ten witnesses to testify to the same two events (R-3576; 3593; 3597; 3600; 3639; 3648; 3658; 3661; 3664; 3671).

One of the arguments did not involve Appellant, but occurred between Peggy Carr and Diana Carr when Diana complained about Peggy's children playing their music too loudly (R-3597). The second incident occurred between Appellant and Pye Carr. On this occasion, Pye, his son, and some friends were working on a car. They were playing a "party" tape that contained obscene jokes and language. It was being played loudly and Appellant complained to Pye about the volume of the tape (R-3593; R-3671). After this discussion, Appellant became angry and disconnected the hose that supplied water from Appellant's well to the Carr household (R-3671)<sup>1</sup>.

---

<sup>1</sup>Interestingly, this testimony directly contradicts Pye Carr's previous testimony that it was Appellant's well that was inoperable and that Appellant was receiving his water from the Carr well (R1708-1710). The State emphasized this fact in an effort to suggest that Appellant's apparent lack of concern over the source of his water somehow meant that he knew where the poison that affected the Carr family came from.

In June of 1988, Pye Carr received a letter in the mail that was postmarked June 14, 1988 (R-1718). The letter stated:

You and all your so-called  
family have two weeks to  
move out of Florida forever  
or else you will all die.  
This is no joke (R-1595).

The origin of the note was never determined, but the State attempted to link Appellant to the note because of a similarity in language of the note to statements that Appellant made to Detective Mincey (R-2077). Investigation by the FBI failed to find any stamps, paper, cutting utensils, typewriters, or any other object or evidence that demonstrated a nexus between Appellant and the note (R3768-3771).

During the week of October 16, 1988, Pye Carr took a week of his vacation from his employment as a mining superintendent at Estech (R1681-1682). Both Travis Carr and Duane Dubberly were with Pye around the house that week because both of them had dropped out of school (R-1685). They were working on various projects and had been given the assignment of painting the apartment (R-1985). Also present around the house were Gelena Shiver who worked the 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. shift at Kaplan Industries, Peggy Carr, who worked from 6 a.m. to 2 p.m. at Nicholas Restaurant, and Tammy Reed, who worked at Polk General Hospital from 8 a.m. to 4 p.m. (R-1631).

On Thursday, October 20, 1988, Pye Carr left Alturas with three of his friends for a hunting trip in South

Carolina (R1682-1683). Travis and Duane remained behind in order to finish their assignment of painting the apartment (R-1685). The other individuals in the extended household went about their affairs as usual. With the exception of 20 to 30 minutes on Thursday, October 20, 1988, and 20 to 30 minutes on Friday, October 21, 1988, the Carr home was never unattended. On those two occasions, Travis and Duane went to Nicholson Supply to purchase paint (R-3165; R-1593). Also during this week, Appellant spent the majority of time at his office in Winter Haven, Florida, preparing for a computer convention in Orlando, Florida (R-3287).

On Saturday, October 23, 1988, Peggy Carr began to manifest symptoms of an unknown illness (R-1654). She was admitted to Bartow Memorial Hospital the following day and remained there until Thursday, October 27, 1988 (R-1797). She was discharged and returned home where her condition failed to improve (R-1806). Both Travis and Duane also started to exhibit symptoms similar to those experienced by Peggy Carr (R-1805). On October 30, 1988, Peggy was transported by ambulance to Winter Haven Hospital (R-1869). Pursuant to medical advice, both Travis and Duane were transported to the hospital the same evening and admitted (R-1834).

Dr. T. Richard Hostler, a specialist in neurology, treated the Carr family upon their arrival at Winter Haven Hospital (R-1820; R-1834). Dr. Hostler immediately suspected

thallium poisoning and Hostler testified that any trained neurologist would have considered thallium poisoning based upon the symptoms exhibited by Peggy (R-1843). Within 24 hours, the presence of thallium was confirmed (R-1828).

Peggy Carr's condition progressively deteriorated. She lapsed into a coma within a week of her entry into Winter Haven Hospital (R-1829). She remained on life support systems until March 3, 1989, when the systems were disconnected (R-1837). Travis and Duane remained in the hospital pending their recuperation and discharge (R1835-1837). Subsequent tests revealed the presence of thallium in the systems of Gelena Shiver, Kasey Bell, Pye Carr, and Timothy Pacetti (R-3320).

Following the discovery that various members of the Carr family were exposed to thallium, numerous agencies became involved in the search for the source of the element (R-1920; R-1982). Robert Tiller of HRS began taking numerous samples of substances from the Carr home for the purpose of analyzing them (R-1934). He also took 36 to 40 swabs from areas inside both the home and the apartment (R-1933; R-1949).

On November 23, 1988, while visiting the Carr home for the fourth time, Carlton Layne of EPA suggested to Mr. Tiller that one or two of the empty Coke bottles located throughout the house be tested for residue (R-1994).

The Coke bottles had been observed by Mr. Tiller on his first visit to the residence, but Pye Carr had told him that the family only drank Pepsi (R-1942). The full Coke bottles were located under the counter on the floor (R-1945).

On December 2, 1988, Detective Mincey learned from Dr. George Coppinger of HRS that thallium had been found in the washings taken from the Coke bottles and in a swab taken from under the sink in the apartment (R-2055; R-2037). Based upon this discovery, the investigation became criminal in nature at that time (R-2055). Detective Mincey returned to Pye's residence to secure the remaining, full Coke bottles and the pieces of the Coke bottle that he had broken (R-2059). These bottles were located on the floor under a counter behind a garbage can. It was a family understanding that this location was a "hiding" place used to keep things from the children (R-1599; R-1729).

Information concerning the Coke bottles was limited. The lot numbers reflected where and when the bottles were produced, but tracing them through the stream of commerce was impossible (R3129-3132). The only information available concerning the source of the Coke bottles was Travis' recollection that he had purchased them from the Circle K store in Alturas one or two days before getting sick (R-1624). When this particular piece of information did not fit into the scenario adopted by the authorities, the police attempted to convince Travis that he had not made such a purchase (R-1625).



An examination of the Tampa bottling plant and the method used to package the bottles suggested that it would be impossible for eight randomly laced bottles to end up in the same eight-pack of Cokes (R3115-3118). However, due to the lack of security or controls on the transportation of the bottles, the prospect that the bottles had been tampered with after they left the bottling plant was never excluded (R-3037).

Trial and error testing performed by Coca-Cola personnel sought to identify the particular thallium compound used in the bottles. It was learned that thallium one nitrate, thallium phosphate, thallium sulfate, and thallium maleanate could all be placed in solution and then put into the bottles without altering the appearance of the product (R-3405; R-3426). However, thallium III nitrate caused the Coke to turn brown and produced a precipitant (R-3406). Subsequent scientific analysis showed the presence of the nitrate ion (R-3557).

On December 22, 1988, Detective Mincey and FBI Agent Brad Brekke were conducting interviews in the Alturas area when they observed Appellant working near his garage/workshop (R-2073). They identified themselves and asked if they could speak to Appellant. He invited them into his home, but immediately was classified as unusual because he carried the piece of wood on which he was working into the home with him (R-2075). Appellant was considered to be

acting nervously and it was noted that he made a "clucking" sound when he talked (R-2079). When asked why anyone would want to poison the Carr family, Appellant allegedly responded that perhaps someone wanted them to move out of their residence (R-2077). Detective Mincey considered this response to be similar to the threatening note of June, 1988 (R-2077). From that moment forward, Appellant was considered to be responsible for the poisoning and the investigation focused on him to the virtual exclusion of all other possibilities (R3011-3024).

In order to get closer to Appellant in an effort to obtain incriminating information, Special Agent Susan Goreck of the Polk County Sheriff's Office was used in an undercover capacity. She learned that the Mensa Society was sponsoring a "Mensa Murder Weekend" in April, 1988. She wrote to Appellant's wife with a request that she be permitted to attend the function (R-3213). These weekends were sponsored by the Mensa Society and consisted of various scenarios involving murder. The participants assumed roles in the scenarios and then would attempt to solve the crimes based upon clues that were available (R-3221).

Under the guise of Sherry Guinn, Goreck assumed the role of an innocent bystander at the April function (R3214-3215). She met and befriended Appellant and learned that he researched the background material for the weekend's activities, which had been written by his wife (R3224-3225). She also learned

that Appellant planned to sell his house in Alturas and move either to Virginia or Sebring, Florida (R-3231).

Based on this additional information, Goreck met Appellant at his home on April 19, 1989, under the pretense that she was interested in buying the property (R-3232). Goreck continued to develop this relationship by meeting with Appellant and taking him on a picnic (R3241-3242). On December 7, 1989, Goreck sent money orders to Appellant for the purpose of renting the Alturas home (R-3248). Through a conversation with Appellant on December 12, 1989, Goreck learned that Appellant and his wife had moved to Sebring, that she could move into the Alturas house, but that her occupancy of the home was limited due to some additional work that Appellant had to do in the upstairs bedroom (R-3248).

Following the conversation with Appellant, Goreck and a search team went to Appellant's Alturas home. They took swabbings from the home and searched the area for anything of an evidentiary nature (R-3249). During the course of the search, a small brown bottle (Q-206) was found in the closed drawer of a workbench located in the garage (R-3898). The bottle was literally part of a rat's nest (R-3900). The bottle was seized and sent to the FBI laboratory where the powder contained therein was determined to be thallium one nitrate (R-3565). Numerous other items were seized from the garage and held by a waste disposal firm pending analysis (R-3730).

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