FILED SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

APR 6 1992

CLERK, SURBEME COURT.

By
Chief Deputy Clerk

GEORGE J. TREPAL,

Appellant,

v.

Case No. 77,667

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

BRIEF OF THE APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS
Assistant Attorney General
2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700
Westwood Center
Tampa, Florida 33607
(813) 873-4739

OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

"What he is going to be permitted to prove is that Mr. Trepal has knowledge of chemical reactions necessary to produce methamphetamine" (R 5388).

To that extent, the trial court permitted the testimony of Agent Broughton concerning the steps employed in the manufacture

of both methamphetamine and amphetamine. This evidence was not introduced solely for the purpose of showing appellant was "a criminal and [] a man of bad character" (appellant's brief at page 70). Rather, it was offered to demonstrate that appellant had the knowledge necessary to commit the instant crimes. state was careful to avoid characterizing appellant as one who had been previously convicted of illicit activities (R 5375). Notwithstanding the contention in appellant's brief, Agent Broughton was qualified to testify as to the manufacture of methamphetamines. He had previously been qualified as an expert in the State of Florida regarding investigation and operation of clandestine drug labs (R 3469). As such, in much the same manner as a doctor or a lawyer would refer to books and documents, Agent Broughton was competent to testify concerning the matters with which he deals on a daily basis. Inasmuch as knowledge of poisons and complex chemistry was an issue to be determined by the jury in this case, the trial judge correctly permitted the above-described evidence.

Appellant also contends that the trial judge erroneously permitted testimony that appellant expressed verbal threats concerning the Carr family children. Alan Adams had done lawn work for appellant approximately once every week for a period of a year and a half to two years (R 3638). He testified that appellant always got highly upset and yelled obscenities at the Carr children. Mr. Adams also observed appellant threaten the children on several occasions. On one occasion appellant stated

he "would get them" and another occasion appellant was highly upset when the children rode motorcycles through appellant's yard and appellant stated, "I'm going to kill you" (R Once again, evidence of this nature was highly relevant with respect to the issues in the case. The state's theory, and conceded by defense counsel in the argument on the motion for judgment of acquittal, was that appellant was highly upset for many years over the activities of the Carr family. Testimony of the nature just described is relevant towards showing appellant's motive for eventually poisoning the family.

With respect to appellant's contention that the trial judge erroneously permitted testimony that appellant deliberately was placed in "hostile" confrontation situations in order to observe his reactions, your appellee submits that no proper objection was made to this testimony. During trial, after the prosecutor asked Detective Goreck how appellant reacted to a hostile-type person coming to his home, defense counsel merely objected without stating any grounds or reason for his objection (R 3239). During the other portion of the testimony complained-of by appellant in this regard (R 3246), no objection of any kind was made by appellant. Generally, in order for an issue to be preserved for further review by an appellate court, that issue must first be presented to the trial court and the specific legal argument or ground to be argued on appeal must be part of that presentation. Tillman v. State, 471 So.2d 32 (Fla. 1985), citing Steinhorst v. State, 412 So.2d 332 (Fla. 1982), and Black

v. State, 367 So.2d 656 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979). The failure to present the specific objection to the trial court as now presented on appeal precludes appellate review.

The fact that testimony was elicited concerning Coke being been discussed beverage of choice of appellant has previously under Issue I, supra. This information was highly relevant in that the testimony revealed that Peggy Carr, in her purchases for the Carr family, usually bought Pepsi, a store brand, or whatever was on sale, and it was known that Pepsi was Peggy Carr's preferred beverage. Also, Peggy Carr only two liter plastic bottles, not sixteen purchased refundable glass bottles such as those which contained the Thus, this testimony concerning thallium-laced Coke. appellant's preference for Coke was relevant as direct evidence to show that it was more probable that appellant supplied the Cokes to the Carr household.

Appellant also contends that the trial court improperly admitted testimony concerning the threatening note sent to the Carr family in June, 1988, and that the scenarios in the Mensa mystery weekends included threatening notes and homicides by poisoning. This matter has also been discussed in Issue I, supra, and appellant is incorrect when he asserts that there was no evidence to link the threatening note to appellant (brief of appellant at page 78). The record in this case is clear that appellant, and not his wife (Dr. Diana Carr), wrote the "voodoo pamphlet" which contained language strikingly similar to that

contained in the threatening note sent to the Carr family. This testimony was competent circumstantial evidence to link appellant to the threatening note. Additionally, although Diana Carr might have written some of the scenarios for the Mensa murder mystery weekends, she did so based only upon research submitted by appellant. However, these scenarios written by Dr. Carr do not include the "voodoo pamphlet" which clearly was written by appellant. This evidence was highly relevant to the issues presented at trial.

Your appellee submits that the trial court did not err in admitting the items of evidence discussed under this claim. However, should this Honorable Court determine that there was error in the admission of one or more of the items discussed herein, any such error is harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. State v. DiGuillio, 491 So.2d 1121 (Fla. 1986).

ISSUE IV

WHETHER APPELLANT MAY RAISE ON APPEAL AN ISSUE CONCERNING THE SUFFICIENCY OF THE EVIDENCE WITH RESPECT TO "CAUSE OF DEATH" WHERE THAT ISSUE WAS NOT RAISED BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT.

Appellant raises as his fourth point a claim which was not presented to the trial judge. Appellant contends on appeal that the record does not reveal that the evidence established beyond a reasonable doubt that appellant caused the death of Peggy Carr. The failure to raise this claim below precludes appellate relief.

See Tillman, supra; Steinhorst, supra; and Black, supra.

Even had this claim been preserved below, via a defense request for an instruction as to cause of death or otherwise, appellant's point would have no merit. In order for appellant to escape criminal liability, a completely superceding cause of death would have had to exist. The evidence in this case does not support the existence of a superceding cause. For some reason, appellant contends that the decision in Griffith v. State, 548 So.2d 244 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989), would render Dr. Hostler criminally liable for the death of Peggy Carr if the statutory provisions regarding recognition of brain death (Florida Statute §382.009 or its predecessor §382.085 (1985)) were not followed. interpretation of Griffith would support that conclusion. the court was concerned with a defendant who attempted a mercy killing of a person he thought dead. The victim was not "brain dead" inasmuch as her respiratory and circulatory functions were not maintained by artificial means of support and because there

was no termination of the functioning of the entire brain. The court held that the terms of Florida Statute 382.085 (1985) do not permit a third party from taking the law into his own hands by taking a life. In the instant case, however, Dr. Hostler testified that Peggy Carr was in a chronic vegetative state unable to maintain life on her own and, in all probability, was brain dead (R 1837 - 1840). Dr. Hostler also testified that he consulted with several physicians and legal counsel prior to disconnecting Peggy Carr from the ventilator (R 1838). There is no evidence that the statutory provisions of §382.09 were not complied with.

In any event, the record is clear that the "cause of death" of Peggy Carr was the result of thallotoxicosis or thallium poisoning (R 1841). This conclusion was not challenged by defense counsel in cross examination or otherwise. Indeed, at the pretrial conference, the court asked defense counsel if cause of death was an issue and defense counsel replied that he didn't know and that's why witnesses weren't listed (R 4893). No witnesses, such as a pathologist, were listed nor did defense counsel in any way challenge Peggy Carr's cause of death. It simply was not an issue in this case.

Even had Dr. Hostler acted in a negligent manner, appellant would not be relieved of criminal responsibility. In <u>Hallman v.</u>

State, 371 So.2d 482 (Fla. 1979), this Honorable Court held that even if medical malpractice could have been known at the time of Hallman's trial, a writ of error coram nobis would not have lied

because the fact of the hospital's negligence would not have precluded a conviction. In so holding, this Court relied upon <u>Johnson v. State</u>, 64 Fla. 321, 323, 59 So. 894, 895 (1912):

A defendant cannot escape the penalties for an act which in point of fact produces death, which death might possibly have been averted by some possible mode of treatment. The true doctrine is that, where the wound is in itself dangerous to life, mere erroneous treatment of it or of the wounded man suffering from it will afford the defendant no protection against the charge of unlawful homicide.

See also Hampton v. State, 496 So.2d 195 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986). Thus, based on long standing Florida precedent, appellant could not avoid criminal responsibility even if Dr. Hostler had negligently attended to Peggy Carr, (and your appellee firmly denies that Dr. Hostler acted in a negligent fashion). Appellant's fourth point must fail.

ISSUE V

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BYNOT INSTRUCTING THE JURY ON THE MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM PENALTIES FOR THE OFFENSE OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER DURING THE GUILT PHASE OF THE TRIAL.

At the charge conference for the guilt phase of this capital murder case, the following discussion occurred concerning the giving of an instruction on the maximum and minimum penalties. As will be noted, the prosecutor argued the instruction should be given, and it was the defense attorney who did not want the instruction.

THE COURT: Maximum and minimum penalties. This is 2.06.

MR. AGUERO: Again, that's a standard instruction and it only applies to Count I. That's all that instruction is allowable for anymore.

MR. J. STIDHAM: It has been deleted, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sir?

MR. J. STIDHAM: In the standard instructions 2.06 has been deleted. In my understanding, 2.05, item 5 is supposed to take care of that.

MR. AGUERO: No. 2.06 has not been deleted as to capital cases.

MR. J. STIDHAM: This is a brand new book. I'll show you.

Rule Instruction 2.05, Item 5 provides: Your duty is to determine if the defendant is guilty or not guilty, in accord with the law. It is the judge's job to determine what is a proper sentence would be if the defendant is guilty.

THE COURT: I think it's one of these things that you can waive. It is surely to your benefit. I mean, I think they intended it to be to your benefit. But if you don't want to hear it, I don't know of any reason that I should --

MR. J. STIDHAM: I realize that's what it's intended to be.

MR. AGUERO: It is the State's position that that is not -- I mean, of course, they can waive any instruction. But it is the State's position this is a standard instruction. And the trial of a capital case doesn't make any sense unless you give this instruction. That is, if you don't tell the jury about the penalty on a capital charge then they don't -- what you read them before was that. You already gave that to them at the beginning of the trial.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. AGUERO: So if you don't give it again you're leaving out something that I think they need in order for them to go back in the jury room and remember that there's 14 other counts they have to do is one thing. This count means that they are going to come back on first degree murder. So, I think this needs to be in there in order to remind the jury of their job.

THE COURT: The problem with it, not to argue but the problem is that what you're saying this instruction tells them. It doesn't tell them. It doesn't tell them if you find him guilty of first degree murder you're going to come back. It tells them the maximum penalty is death or life. And then it tells them to disregard what I just told them. The maximum penalty is death or life. So it's stupid, idiotic.

MR. AGUERO: I understand.

MR. J. STIDHAM: I agree. I believe, you know, this instruction to me cuts both ways. It helps, it hurts, who knows what it's going to do. So it bugs me.

THE COURT: In the sense that it contributes to the confusion of the jury it helps.

MR. J. STIDHAM: I mean, they know what the penalty for this is at this point.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. AGUERO: Denied?

THE COURT: No, no. Whatever you want to do. If you want it you get it. I just can't imagine why the Supreme Court tells me to tell them something and then tell them to disregard that I just told them that.

MR. J. STIDHAM: I totally agree with that.

MR. AGUERO: Well, it used to be that way as to all crimes. It didn't make sense then either. Okay. That's out.

THE COURT: It's out of there. Cautionary instruction. (R 4025-4027)

Not only did defense counsel waive the giving of an instruction on the maximum and minimum penalties at the guilt phase, but it was also not necessary to give the instruction at that point in the trial.

Appellee submits the trial court was not required to instruct on the penalties applicable to first degree murder during the guilt phase. This issue was presented to the Fifth Circuit in Wright v. State, 585 So.2d 321 (Fla. 1991). That

The court certified the following question to the Florida Supreme Court: Whether Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.390(a) requires that a trial judge instruct the jury on the possible penalties that attend a conviction for first-degree murder at the conclusion of the guilt phase of the trial upon a timely request? This question is still pending before this Court.

court indicated such an instruction was not needed in the guilt phase. The court went on to opine that Rule 3.390(a), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, should be read to require the giving of maximum and minimum penalties only in capital cases and only in the penalty phase of a capital case. The court reasoned that the second phase was the time when the jury must concern itself with recommending a penalty, thus the minimum and maximum penalties become relevant. During the guilt phase, the court stated, the jury can be assumed to know the minimum and maximum penalties. Id. at 322.

The reasoning of the district court is sound in this instance. The penalties involved for a particular crime are no more relevant in a capital case at the guilt phase than they are at the guilt or innocence determination of any other criminal trial. Furthermore, we don't have to assume, we know that the jury during the guilty phase is aware of the possible penalties. And the jury sub judice was clearly aware of the maximum and minimum for first degree murder because they were specially given this information during the voir dire proceedings. The trial judge said:

At the conclusion of the evidence and the argument, [during the penalty phase], and after hearing fairly detailed instructions on the law, the jury will be asked to retire and to return a recommendation to the Court as to what sentence should be imposed. There are only two possible punishments for the crime of first degree murder in Florida. And they are: Death in the electric chair or life imprisonment with a mandatory minimum of 25 years before eligibility for parole. (R 24)

The jury was aware of the maximum and minimum sentences for first degree murder.

Thus, even if the jury should have been given a penalties instruction at the conclusion of the guilt phase, Appellee submits the failure to do so was harmless error since they were so instructed during the *voir dire* proceedings.

Additionally, Appellee submits defense counsel waived the giving of such an instruction. It is abundantly clear from the charge conference that the prosecutor wanted the court to give a maximum and minimum penalty instruction. It was defense attorney who stressed that it should not be given. And there is no reason why counsel could not waive this particular instruction on behalf of the defendant.

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